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1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic Bussey's Contrivance

and/or common Bussey's Stone Dwelling

2. Location

street & number Conowingo Road N/A not for publication
city, town Bel Air X vicinity of congressional district First
state Maryland county Harford
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
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___ structure __ both ____work in progress — educational _X_private residence
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not applicable ___no ___ military ____other:

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name James B. Rutledge Jr. et al
street & number 1607 Whiteford Road telephone no.:
city, town Darlington state and zip code Maryland 21034

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Harford County Courthouse liber 1109
street & number 40 South Main Street folio 135
city, town Bel Air state Maryland

6. Representation in Existing uistorical surveys

title Maryland Historical Trust Historic Properties Inventory

date undated ___tederal X state ___ county ___ local
_pository for survey records Maryland Historical Trust

city, town Annapolis state Maryland
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7. Description Survey No. HA—i742—
Condition Check one Check one

- excellent —__ deteriorated ____ unaltered _X original site N/A

____good ____ruins _X _ altered ____moved date of move /
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Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

See attached continuation sheet 7.1.
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Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

____prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ___ landscape architecture X__ religion
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1500-1599 ___ agriculture ____economics —_literature ___ sculpture
_1600-1699 _x _ architecture — education ___ military ___social/

___1700-1799 ___ art ____engineering —___ music humanitarian

X 1800-1899 ____ commerce ____exploration/settlement ___ philosophy ____ theater

__ 1900~ ____ communications ___ industry ____ politics/government ____ transportation
____invention ____ other (specify)

Specific dates 1819 Builder/Architect {nknown

check: Applicable Criteria: A xB _xC _ D

and/or

Applicable Exception: A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ national __ state y local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

See attached continuation sheet 8.1.



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No.HA=1742—
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See continuation sheet.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property ___206.30 acres

Quadrangle name _Bel Air Quadrangle scale___ 7.5 min.
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11. Form Prepared By

name/title Kathryn M. Kuranda

organization  Goodwin & Associates, Inc. date July 24, 1991
street & number 337 East Third Street telephone  (301) 694-0428
city or town Frederick state Maryland
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Resource Count: 5
SUMMARY

Bussey's Contrivance is a five building former agricultural complex encompassing an early
nineteenth century stone dwelling, three twentieth century frame outbuildings, a twentieth century cinder
block spring house, and the remains of a twentieth century barn and silo. The complex has been modified
substantially. The complex is currently in residential use.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION

Bussey's Contrivance is located on Conowingo Road (Route #1) in the vicinity of Bel Air, Harford
County, Maryland. The complex is accessible form Conowingo Road by way of an unpaved drive. The site
is surrounded to the north and west by cultivated fields. Dense woods and undergrowth form the southern
and eastern boundaries of the site.

The Bussey Dwelling is a symmetrical, two-story, three-bay masonry dwelling constructed ion 1819
by Edward F. Bussey. The single pile building is supported by a random rubble foundation and terminates
in a gable roof clad in corrugated metal. Portions of a molded box cornice mark the lateral building eaves.
The majority of this early cornice has been replaced by a simple board trim. The gable ends of the building
are marked by simple raking boards. Interior-end chimneys rise forim the east and west gable end elevations
of the dwelling. These chimneys have been rebuilt to include brick stacks. A date stone is centrally located
at the base of the west elevation chimney stack. This stone appears to be sandstone; the incised inscription
includes the date "1819 and the name "E.F.B..." The surname of this inscription is illegible. Two narrow one-
light-over-one-light fixed sash windows are located on the attic story of the gable end elevations. These
units are enframed by simple board surrounds. The first and second story levels of the gable end elevations
are blind.

The body of the building is constructed in random rubble stone. The corners are delineated by cut
stone quoins. The exterior wall planes are continuous with those of the foundation. The building's
symmetrical fenestration pattern is established by the structural bay divisions found on the north and south
elevations. First story window openings are slightly larger than those found on the second story level. The
majority of the building’s windows have been replaced with two-light-over-two-light units enframed by simple
board surrounds housed between wooden sills and lintels. The window surrounds also are replacement
elements. An earlier six-light-over-six-light window survives on the first story of the north elevation.
Aluminum storm sash have been fixed to all visible windows. One-by-one slider units are found on the
second story of the principal (north) elevation; one-over-one units are found on the secondary south
elevation.

One-story frame additions are located on the north, south, and east elevations of the building. The
north elevation addition occupies two bays of the facade in the location of an earlier hipped roof porch. A
roof ghost of this earlier element survives.

The north elevation addition is a two-by-one bay extension of contemporary design. The addition
is supported by a cinder block foundation and rises to a shed roof with extended eaves. The north wall of
the addition is canted. Exterior addition planes are clad in vinyl siding; the roof is sheathed in composition
shingles. The original entry to the building has been replaced by a contemporary wood door that now
provides access between the north addition and the masonry principal block.
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The south elevation addition is a central one bay structure supported by a cinder block foundation
and terminating in a shed roof. An earlier six-light-over-six-light window appears to have been reused in the
south elevation of the addition. The exterior wall planes of the south addition are clad in asbestos; the roof
is sheathed in standing seam metal panels.

The east elevation addition is a one by two bay extension supported by a cinder block foundation.
The addition spans the full depth of the elevation.

The interior of the dwelling was not available for inspection at the request of the owner. The exterior
design suggests a hall and parlor plan. The integrity of the building’s interior was not accessed.

Four twentieth century outbuildings are located on the complex. A single story frame outbuilding,
circa 1940, with a square ground plan is located to the southeast of the dwelling. This single cell structure
is supported by cinder block piers and terminates in a shed roof. A second single story storage structure,
circa 1940, is located southeast of the dwelling. This building is rectangular in ground plan and rises to a
gable roof clad in slate shingles. The building has been modified through the addition of aluminum frame,
slider windows.

A four bay equipment shed, circa 1940, completes the collection of frame outbuilding on the site.
This structure is rectangular in ground plan and terminates in a shed roof. Three bays on the north elevation
of the building are open to allow for vehicular access. A single story cinder block spring house, circa 1950,
is located to the east of the main building complex. This structure terminates in a gable roof.

The foundation of a substantial barn is located in the southwest corner of the former farm lot.
Debris from this building indicates a twentieth century structure, circa 1940, and includes poured concrete
and slate shingles. The shaft of a glazed block silo marks the site of the southeast elevation of the barn.
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SUMMARY

Bussey's Contrivance is an example of an architectural from common to the Mid-Atlantic Region.
The form is of English folk derivation, and is characterized by its simple, rectangular ground plan, two story
scale, symmetrical facade, and entry perpendicular to the roof idge. The structure’s original windows have
been removed as has the original entry and a principal elevation porch. Despite the construction of several
additions, the structure retains its original massing. It is representative of a nineteenth century agricultural
complex of the Piedmont Region of Maryland; it possesses the quality of significance as defined by National
Register Criterion C.

Historical research indicates that the complex was associated with significant historical events or
personages. Edward F. Bussey, who is credited with the construction of the dwelling, was descendent from
alocally significant family noted for their support of St. Ignatius Roman Catholic Church. Bussey was a local
landowner from ca. 1810 to ca. 1840, historical research indicates that Edward Bussey played a role in
significant events associated with local history. Archival research and land tenure records do not suggest
associations with significant events or individuals subsequent to Edward Bussey’s ownership of the property.
The Bussey Stone Dwelling also possesses the quality of significance as defined by National Register
Criterion B, for its association with Edward Bussey.

HISTORY AND SUPPORT

The Bussey Stone Dwelling is situated on the road from "The Hickory" to Gibson. Historically, this
road extended from the crossroads village of Bel Air, and originally was part of the Spesutia Hundred.
Cluster communities developed at both Hickory and Gibson, both conveniently close to the Bussey Stone
Dwelling.

The Bussey family first was noted in the earliest records of Harford County. According to local
genealogical documents (Archives, Harford County Historical Society), three Bussey brothers migrated to
America from England during the seventeenth century. At least one Bussey had migrated to Harford County
by 1744: Edward Bussey was listed as a tenant on two plats of Lord Baltimore's Gunpowder Manor in 1767.
Under the Maryland Resurvey of 1785, land surveyed for Edward Bussey became known as "Bussey’s Shipe"
or "Bussey’s Purchase."

The Bussey family was prominent in the early military and political history of the Bel Air area.
Edward Bussey served in the Revolutionary War as a private in Captain John Love’s Company, No. 10
(Preston 1901:115). His brother Bennet also served in the Revolutionary Was as a captain in the 8th
battalion of Colonel Hale’s Battalion of Militia of the Flying Camp. Bennet's son, Henry Green Bussey,
served in the War of 1812 as a captain. In 1789, Edward and Bennet Bussey both were listed on the voter
rolls of Harford County; because property ownership was a fundamental requirement of voting, this fact
suggests that Edward and Bennet Bussey had achieved some status and wealth by that time.

The Busseys also were a part of an early group of Catholics who settled in the "Deer Creek* area
(Preston 1901:160). With other Catholic families, the Busseys were instrumental in establishing the St.
Ignatius Roman Catholic Church in Hickory. The establishment of a Catholic church in Harford County was
significant because early colonial Maryland legislation had forbidden Catholics to construct churches. This
ban remained in effect until the Declaration of Rights and the Constitution of Maryland, adopted ion the late
eighteenth century, allows religious freedom. St. Ignatius bears the distinction of being the oldest Roman
Catholic Church in continuous use in the Diocese of Baltimore. Edward F. Bussey, the son of Bennet, was
a petitioner for the church in 1819; he and his brother, Henry Green Bussey, also were onginal pewholders
in 1819. The Bussey family affiliation with St. Ignatius Church has been documented through the mid-1800s.
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By 1783, Bennet Bussey, the Revolutionary War captain, had acquired property in Baltimore and
Harford Counties, in three separate hundreds: Gunpowder Upper Hundred, Bush River Hundred, and Eden
Hundred (Assessment of 1783:1,5). He received title to the 180 1/4-acre tract known as "Bussey’s
Tranquility” in August, 1790 (Harford County Patents I.C. #L:175). The 1790 census shows that Bennet
Bussey owned five slaves (United States Census, 1790). At his death in 1804, Bussey conveyed 400 acres
"near the Hickory in Harford County" to his second son, Henry Green (Harford County Will W.G.10:81). The
property transactions indicate that Bussey owned land in the Hickory area prior to 1804 (Harford County
Wills H.D.R.:608).

Edward Bussey is credited with the construction of the extant Bussey House; a date stone on the
dwelling contains the eroded inscription "E.F. B..." and "1819." Edward F. Bussey was born in 1784 in
Harford County and married Gaily Ann Wheeler in 1811. He also can be placed in the vicinity of the Hickory
community during this period by virtue of his recorded active involvement in St. Ignatius Church as a
founding parishioner and pewholder.

Edward Bussey also is referenced in several deeds during the period. He purchased a 97-acre
portion of Bennet Wheeler's property, known as "Wheelers and Clarks Contrivance,” in 1811; (Deeds
H.D.W.:114); this property originally was described as "a tract beginning near the head of the drafts of the
Bush River and drafts of the head of Thomas Run (Maryland Hall of Records Patent Index). In 1813, he
acquired 76 additional acres of the same tract from Parker Hall Lee (Deeds H.D.X.:395). Edward Bussey
constructed his residence on this 173-acre tract ca. 1819; the property became known as "Bussey’s
Contrivance" in 1834.

Edward Bussey died in 1839; his brother, Henry Green Bussey, mortgaged the property in 1845
(Deeds H.D.G. 31:231); she subsequently sold 76 acres (Deeds H.D.G. 31:231). However, Gaily Ann Bussey
died in 1851 and, apparently, did not fulfil the terms of the 1845 purchase. The decision in an 1854 equity
case involving her oldest son, Benedict, directed that the property of Edward F. Bussey be publicly
auctioned in "Belle Air". At the time of the auction, the parcel consisted of 100 acres and was sold to
Samuel and Henry Ady. In 1858, Samuel Dy et al. conveyed a 25-acre portion of the former tract to
Benedict Bussey (Deeds W.G. 10:120). The property was designated on both thee 1858 Jennings and the
Herrick and the 1878 Martenet maps of Harford County under the name of "Bussey".

In 1902, Benedict Bussey died instate; his estate comprised the mortgaged farmstead of 25 acres.
James Carcaud bought the property at a foreclosure sale (Equity Case 5858 P:74); Carcaud sold the
property in 1913 to M. Roberta Noonan, who resold it in 1915. Thus, by the turn of the century, the tract
had become disassociated with the Bussey family. Today, the Bussey farmstead is owned by James B.
Rutledge et al. and occupied by tenants.

Bussey’s Contrivance is characterized by its simple, rectangular ground plan, two story scale,
symmetrical facade, and entry perpendicular to the roof ridge. The exterior of the Bussey Stone Dwelling
is a substantially altered representative of early nineteenth century Harford County vernacular architecture.
The overall scale, and proportion of the building survive, however, the building's original massing and
ornamentation have been removed or altered through addition. The structure’s original windows have been
removed as has the original entry and a principal elevation porch. Although many of the later additions are
reversible, the architectural integrity of the building is questionable. The building shell survives intact,
however evidence supporting the design of original character defining features, such as the entrance and
window treatment, does not survive.

The interior of the dwelling was not available for inspection. The exterior design suggests a hall and
parlor plan; no assessment of integrity was possible under the current investigations.
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An overview of the Maryland Historic Trust Inventory Forms for Harford County suggests that
random rubble was a common construction method for dwelling ranging from one-and-one-half stories to
two-and-one-half stories from the mod-eighteenth century through the mid-nineteenth century. At least one
other example, Abott's Forest (HA 987), a three bay, two-story dwelling with interior-end chimneys and blind
gable-end elevations is documented in survey materials for Harford County. The dwelling, also known as
the Robert Smith Stone House, includes six-;light-over-six-light windows and intact entrance incorporating
a recessed door with sidelights and transom.
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10.1 Verbal Boundary Description and Justification

On its west boundary, Route 1-Conowingo Road bounds the property. Ruff's Mill Road
bounds the property to the north with farmland on its east and south borders. The property
contains 206.30 acres and is listed as Parcel 45 on the property tax map of Harford County,
Maryland.

This boundary includes the dwelling and outbuildings that give the property its agricultural
character.
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